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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

To the Board of Commissioners
Housing Authority of the City of Alameda
Alameda, California

Report on the financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the business-type activities, each major fund, and the
aggregate remaining fund information of the Housing Authority of the City of Alameda, California, as of and for the
year ended June 30, 2015, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the
Authority’s basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design, implementation,
and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statemeuts that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors® Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements baged on onr audit. We conducted our audit in
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the Standards applicable
to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Compiroller General of the United
States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures fo obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements, The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, In making those risk assessments,
the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial
statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but net for the purpose of
expressing an opinion en the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control, Accordingly, we express no such opinion.
An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial
statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinions.




Opinions

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective
fipancial position of the business-type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of
the Housing Authority of the City of Alameda, California, as of June 30, 2015, and the respective changes in
financial position and, where applicable, cash flows thereof for the year then ended in conformity with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Other Matters

Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally aceepted in the United States of America require that the management’s discussion
and analysis on pages 4 through 10 and the Schedule of Funding Progress for OPEB, the Schedule of the
Authority’s Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability, and the Schednie of the Authority’s Pension Plan
Contribution on page 40 be presented fo supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, although not a
part of the basic financial statemeénts, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers
it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate
operational, economic, or historical context, We have applied certain liinited procedures to the required
supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information and
comparing the information for consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial
statements, and other kmowledpge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express
an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the Hmited procedures do not provide us with
sufficient evidence to expiess an opinion of provide any assuratce.

Other Information

Qur audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively comprise
the Housing Authority of the City of Alameda, California’s basic financial statements. The Schedule of
Expenditares of Federal Awards on page 42 is required by the U.S, Office of Management and Budget Circular A-
133, Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations, and is not a required part of the basic
ﬁnanclal statements. The accompanying Financial Data Schednle an pages 44 through 50 required by the ULS.

Department of Housing and Urban Development ig presented for putposes of additional analysis and are not a
required part of the basic financial sfatements.

The Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards and the Financial Data Schedule are the responsibility of
management and were derived from and relate directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to
prepare the basic financial statements. Such information hag been snbjected to the auditing procedures applied in the
audit of the basic financial statements and certain-additional procedures, inghading eomparing and reconciling such
information directly to the underlying acoounting and other records used to: prepare the basic [inancial statements or
to the basic financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with anditing standards
generally accepted in the United States of America. Tn our opinion the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards
and the Financial Data Schedule are faitly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the basic financial statements
as a whole.

Implementation of New Accounting Standards
As disclosed in Note 1 to the financial statements, the Authority implemented GASB Statement No. 68, dccounting
and Financial Reporting for Pensions — an amendment of GASB Statement No. 67, and GASB Statement No. 71,
Pension Tramsition for Contributions Muade Subsequent to the Measurement Date — an amendment of GASB
Statement No. 68, during the fiscal year 2015,



Other Reporting Required By Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated December 16, 2015 on
our consideration of the Housing Authority of the City of Alameda, California’s internal control over financial
reporling and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant
agreements and other matters. The purpose of that teport is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control
financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opiniou on internal control
over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integtal part of an audit performed in accordance with
Government Auditing Standards in considering the Housing Authority of the City of Alameda, California’s internal
conirol over financial reporting and compliance,

Craop Lo, LLF

Walnut Creek, California
December 16, 2015



MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

This section of the Housing Authority of the City of Alameda’s annual financial report presents a discussion and
analysis of the financial activities of the Authority for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2015. We encourage readers to
consider the information presented here in conjunction with additional information that we furnished in our letter to
the Board of Commissioners.

The following management discussion and analysis (MD&A) will discuss the results of the Authority’s operations.
Key financial information for the current fiscal year will be compared with those of the prior year.

Financial Highlights

The assets of the Authority exceeded its liabilitics at the close of fiscal year 2015 resulting in a Net Position
of $31,066,682 at June 30, 2015 as opposed to $31,458,226 at June 30, 2014,

Total assets and deferred outflows of resources at June 30, 2015 were $82,358,760. Of this, $34,600,453
represents current assets, $47,367,700 represents non-current assets, and $390,607 represents deferred
outflows of resources. Total assets and deferred outflows of resources at June 30, 2014 were $81,999,564.

Capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation at June 30, 2015 increased by $2,240,433 from $31,568,347 at
June 30, 2014 to $33,808,780 at June 30, 2015. Capital assets are reflected at cost, less accumulated
depreciation for all purchased capital assets.

Total liabilities and deferred inflows of resources at June 30, 2015 were $51,292,0778. Of this, $20,542,071
represents current liabilities, $30,060,103 represents non-current liabilities, and $689,904 represents deferred
inflows of resources. Total liabilities and deferred inflows of resources increased from $50,541,338 at June
30, 2014 to $51,292,078 at June 30, 2015, an increase of $750,740.

Total revenues for the Authority for fiscal year 2015 were $36,868,548 versus $32,980,525 for fiscal year
2014; an increase of $3,888,023. The primary sources of revenue are governmental grants and rents collected
from the Authority’s owned units. These combined amounts totaled $34,292,436 for fiscal year 2015, as
compared to $32,275,610 for fiscal year 2014; an increase of $2,016,826.

Total expenses for the Authority for fiscal year 2015 were $34,972,481 versus $32,958,524 for fiscal year
2014; an increase of $2,013;957. “The major program expendiiure, a5 reflected on the Combined Statemaent of
Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position, was for housing assistance payments. There was
$22,981,870 of housing assistance payment expenses for fiscal year 2015. This represents a decrease of

$211,689 of the $23,193,559 amount for fiscal year 2014.

Operating revenues for the Authority for fiscal year 2015 were $36,656,551 and operating expenses were
$33,804,868. Operating revenues and expenses for fiscal year 2014 were $32,925,004 and $32,352,060
respectively.



Overview of the Financial Statements

This discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to the Authority’s basic financial
statements, which are comprised of a Statement of Net Position, Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and
Changes in Net Position, Statement of Cash Flows and Notes to the Financial Statements.

Government—Wide Financial Statements

The government-wide financial statements report information of the Authority as a whole, net of inter-
program activity.

The Statement of Net Position presents information on the Authority’s assets and liabilities, with the
difference between the two reported as net position. Over time, increases or decreases in net position may
serve as a useful indicator of whether the financial position of the Authority is improving or deteriorating

The Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position presents information showing how the
Authority’s net position changed during the most recent fiscal year. All changes in net position are reported
as soon as the underlying event giving rise to the change occurs, regardless of the timing of related cash
flows. Thus, revenues and expenses are reported in this statement for some items that will only result in cash
flows in future fiscal periods.

The Statement of Cash Flows presents the change in the Housing Authority’s cash and cash equivalents
during the most recent fiscal year.

Fund Financial Statemenis

A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain control over resources that have been
segregated for specific activities or objectives. The Authority uses fund accounting to ensure and
demonstrate compliance with finance-related legal requirements. Some programs are required to be
established by the United States Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD). However, the
Authority also administers other programs to help it control and manage money for particular purposes or to

show that it is meeting legal responsibilities for using grants and other moneys. All of the funds of the

Authority are classified as an enterprise housing fund as a result of GASB 34,

Enterprise funds account for activities similar to those found in the private sector, where the determination
of net income is necessary or useful to sound financial administration. They are reported using the full
accrual method of accounting in which all assets and all liabilities associated with the operation of these
funds are included on the Statement of Net Position. The focus of enterprise funds is on income
measurement, which together with the maintenance of equity, is an important financial indication.

Notes to the Basic Financial Statements

The Notes to the Financial Statements provide additional information that is essential to a full understanding
of the data provided in the fund financial statements.



Component Unit

As is more fully described in Note 1.A. the government-wide financial statements includes the financial
information of the Island City Development (a California Nonprofit Corporation) a discrete component unit
of the Housing Authority of the City of Alameda.

Supplementary Information

The schedule of expenditures of federal awards, the schedule of funding progress for OPEB, the Schedule of
Funding Progress for PERS, and the financial data schedule are presented for purposes of additional analysis
as required by the and the U.S. Office of Management and Budget Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local
Governments and Non-Profit Organizations, Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statements, and
the requirements of the U.S Department of Housing and Urban Development. These schedules can be found
in the Supplementary Information sections of this report.

Financial Analysis

The Authority uses funds to help it control and manage money for particular purposes. A portion of the
Authority’s net position reflects the investment in capital assets (e.g. land, buildings and improvements,
furniture, equipment and machinery). The Authority uses these capital assets to provide services to clients;
consequently, these assets are not available for future spending.

New Significant Accounting Standards Implemented

In fiscal year 2014-2015, the Authority adopted two new statements of financial accounting standards issued
by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (“GASB) that relate to the Authority’s pension plan. The
Statements are:

1. Statement No. 68, Accounting and Financial Reporting for pensions — an amendment of GASB
Statement No. 27.

2. Statement No. 71, Pension Transition for Contributions Made Subsequent to the Measurement Date —
an amendment of GASB Statement No. 68.

The significance of the Authority implementing Statement No. 68 is the reporting of the Authority’s
unfunded pension liability on the full accrual basis of accounting on the Authority’s financial statements.
There are new footnote disclosure requirements and supplementary schedules required by the Statement.

The measurement date for the pension liability is June 30, 2014, This date reflects a one year lag and was
used so that these financial statements could be issued in a timely manner. Contributions made during fiscal
year 2014 — 2015 are reported as deferred outflows of resources in accordance with Statement No. 71.

The implementation of these statements required that a prior period adjustment be made to the Authority’s
June 30, 2014 previously reported net position. This prior period adjustment decreased the Authority’s
reported net position at June 30, 2014 by $2,287,611 from $31,458,226 to $29,170,615. Please refer to
Notes 7 and 8 for more information regarding the Authority’s pension plan and prior period adjustment.




Budgetary Highlights

An agency-wide budget was prepared for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2015, The budget was primarily
used as a management tool. Budgets are prepared in accordance with the accounting procedures prescribed
by the applicable funding agency and revised during the year as appropriate.

Comparative Statement of Net Position

The following table reflects the Statement of Net Position at June 30, 2015 compared to the prior fiscal year.
The Authority is engaged only in Business-Type Activities.

Housing Authority of the City of Alameda
Comparative Statement of Net Position

Assets and Deferred Quiflows:

Current Assets

Notes receivable

Capital Assets (net of
accumulated depreciation)

Deferred outflows

Total Assets and
Deferred Outflows

Liabilities and Deferred Inflows:

Current Liabilities
Non-current Liabilities
Deferred inflows

Total Liabilities and
Deferred Inflows

Net Position
Net investment in Capital Assets
Restricted

Unrestricted

Total Net Position

June 30, 2015
Increase/ Percentage
2015 2014 (Decrease) Change
$ 34,600,453  $ 36,099,416  $(1,498,963) (3.9%
13,558,920 14,331,801 (772,881) (5.4)%
33,808,780 31,568,347 2,240,433 7.1%
390.607 - 390.607
$ 82358760 $81,999564 $ 359,196 0.4%
$20,542,071 $21,231,412 $§ (689,341) (3.2)%
30,060,103 29,309,926 750,177 2.6%
689,904 - 689,804
51.292.078 50,541,338 750,740 1.5%
4,977,820 1,624,610 3,353,210 206.4%
445217 979,720 {534,503) (54.6)%
25.643.645 28.853.896 (3.210.251) (11.1)%
$31,066,682  §$31,458226 $ (391.,544) (1.2)%




Comparative Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position

The following table presents the Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position for the fiscal year
ended June 30, 2015 compared to the prior fiscal year.

Housing Authority of the City of Alameda
Comparative Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position

Year Ended June 30, 2015
Increase/ Percentage
2015 i 2014 {Decrease) Change
Operating Revenues
Grants $ 30,931,166 § 29,016,779 § 1,914,387 6.6%
Rents 3,361,270 3,258,831 102,439 3.1%
Other 2,364,115 649,394 1,714,721 264.0%
Total operating revenues 36,656,551 32,925,004 3,731,547 11.3%
Operating Expenses
Administration 4,588,565 3,300,289 1,288,276 39.0%
Utilities 626,539 662,898 (36,359) (5.5)%
Maintenance 3,418,456 2,836,956 581,500 20.5%
Tenant services 218,421 209,909 8,512 4.1%
Protective services 210,120 210,000 120 0.1%
General 426,812 709,523 (282,711) (39.8%
Housing Assistance Payments 22,981,870 23,193,559 (211,689) (0.9%
Depreciation 1,334,085 1,228,926 105,159 8.6%
Total operating expenses 33,804,868 32,352,060 1.452,808 4.5%
Operating Income (Loss) 2,851,683 572,944 2,278,739 397.7%
Non-Operating Revenue (Expenses)
Interest Income 98,367 55,521 42 846 77.2%
Interest Expense (1,167,613) (606,464) (561,149) 92.5%
Pension Income . e Lo.-..113.630 = ...113.630 }
Net Non-Operating Revenue (Toss) (955,616) {550,943) {404,673 73.5%
Change in Net Position 1,896,067 22,001 1,874,066 8,518.1%
Net Position, Beginning of Year,
as previously stated 31,458,226 31,641,142 (182,916) (0.6)%
Prior period adjustment (Note 8) (2,287,611) (204,917) (2,082,694) 1016.4%

Net Position, Beginning of Year,
as restated 29.170.615

$ 31066682 § 31458226 § (391,544) (1.2)%

31.436,225 (2.265.610) (7.2)%

Net Position, End of Year

Analysis of the Authority’s Overall Financial Position and Results of Operations
As indicated in the above comparative statements the Authority’s Net Position at June 30, 2015 decreased by
$391,544 from the June 30, 2014 balance.
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Changes in Capital Assets

The following presents the changes in fixed assets (net of accumulated depreciation) at June 30, 2015 versus the prior
fiscal year.

Housing Authority of the City of Alameda
Changes in Capital Asscts
(Net of Accumulated Depreciation)

June 30, 2015
Increase/ Percentage
2015 2014 (Decrease) Change
Land $ 14,612,054 $ 13,443,808 § 1,168,246 8.7%
Buildings and Improvements 19,138,681 18,068,158 1,070,523 5.9%
Equipment 58,045 56,381 1,664 3.0%
Total _ $§ 33808780 $§ 31,568347 § 2,240,433 7.1%

Additional information pertaining to capital assets is found in Note 3 to th_e financial statements.

Changes in Long-Term Debt

The following presents the changes in long-term debt at June 30, 2015 versus the prior fiscal year.
Housing Authority of the City of Alameda

Changes in Long-term Debt
June 34, 2015

Increase/ Percentage
2015 2014 (Decrease) Change
Bonds Payabie ' T % 5652847 % 5,798,955 % (146,108) °  (25)%
Notes Payable 23,178,113 24.144.782 {(966,669) (4.0)%
Total $ 28830960 § 29943737 $ (1,112,777 (3.7%

Additional information pertaining to long-term debt is found in Note 4 to the financial statements,



Economic Factors

The Housing Authority is primarily dependent upon HUD for the funding of operations. Therefore, the
Housing Authority is affected more by the federal budget than by state or local economic conditions.
Changes in HUD grants affect the number of households that can be assisted under these federally funded
programs on an ongoing basis.

The Authority’s annual revenues for the Housing Choice Voucher Program is based primarily upon the
amounts received each year from the U.S, Department of Housing and Urban Development, which does not
correlate directly to the amounts expended each year for administrative costs and housing assistance
payments expenses associated with the Housing Choice Voucher Program. Therefore, for any given fiscal
year the Authority’s revenues for the Housing Choice Voucher Program may be more or less than the
expenses for the program. For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2015 the Authority’s expenses associated with
the Housing Choice Voucher Program exceeded its revenues by $261,064. For the previous 2014 fiscal year
the Authority’s expenses for the Housing Choice Voucher Program exceeded its revenues by $1,130,356.
These excess of expenses over revenues were funded by a reduction in the Authority’s Net Position for the
Housing Choice Voucher Program,

Requests for information

This financial report is designed to provide citizens, taxpayers, and creditors with a general overview of the
Housing Authority’s finances and to show the Housing Authority’s accountability for the money it receives.
Questions concerning any of the information provided in this report or request for additional financial
information should be addressed to the Finance Director at the Housing Authority of the City of Alameda,
701 Atlantic Avenue, Alameda, California 94501.
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HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF ALAMEDA
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

PROPRIETARY FUNDS
JUNE 30, 2015
Enterprise Fund  Component Combined
Housing Unit Totals
ASSETS
Current Assets:
Cash and investments {Note 2) $ 34006472 % - % 34,096,472
Due from other agencies 110,244 - 110,244
Tenant accounts receivable 53,179 - 53,179
Accounts receivable - other 268,519 - 268,519
Interest receivable 23,364 - 23,364
Prepaid expenses 32,835 - 32,835
Inventory 15,840 - 15,840
Total current assets 34,600,453 34,600,453
Noncurrent assets:
Notes receivable 13,558,920 - 13,558,920
Capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation
of $22,415,362 (Note 3) 33,808,780 - 33,808,780
Total non-current assets 47,367,700 - 47,367,700
Total assets 81,968,153 81,968,153
DEFERRED QUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Pension Plan (Note §8) 390,607 - 390.607
Total assets and deferred outflows of resources § 82358760 b} - 3 82.358.760
LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities:
Accounts payable - other h 629,891 $ 10,080 h 639,971
Accounts payable — other agencies 2,345 - 2,345
Tenant security deposits 516,838 - 516,838
Prepaid rents 31,637 - 31,637
Uneamed revenue (Note 5) 17,492,110 - 17,492,110
Interest payable 882,769 - 882,769
Compensated absences (Note 6) 110,210 - 110,210
Notes and bonds payable (Note 4) 876,271 - 876,271
Total current liabilities 20.542.071 10,080 20,552,151
Noncurrent liabilities:
Compensated absences (Noie 6) 83,141 o - © 83,141
OPEB payable (Note 9) 3,825 - 3,825
Other noncurrent liabilities 143,764 - 143,764
Accrued pension liability (note 8) 1,874,684 - 1,874,684
Notes and bonds payable (Note 4) 27.954.689 - 27,954,689
Total noncurrent liabilities 30,060,103 - 30,060,103
Total liabilities 50,602,174 10,080 50,612,254
DEFERRED INFLLOWS OF RESOURCES
Pension Plan (Note 8) 689,904 - 689.904
Total liabilities and deferred inflows of resources 51,292.078 10.080 51,302,158
NET POSITION
Net Investment in capital assets 4,977,820 - 4,977,820
Restricted 445217 - 445,217
Unrestricted 25,643,645 (10,080} 25.633.565
Total Net Position $ 31066632 3 (10,080 % 31,056,602

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF ALAMEDA
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND
CHANGES IN NET POSITION -

PROPRIETARY FUND TYPES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015

Operating Revenues
Grants

Rents
Other
Total operating revenues

Operating Expenses
Administrative
Utilities
Maintenance
Tenant services
Protective services
General
Housing assistance payments
Depreciation
Total operating expenditures

Operating income (loss)

Non-Operating Revenues (Expenses)
Interest income
Interest expense
Pension income {(Note 8)
Net non-operating revenue

oo ... Change in net position_ ... ... . . .. ..

Beginning net position, as previously stated
Prior period adjustment (Note 7)
Beginning net position, as restated

Total net position, ending

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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Enterprise Fund Component Combined
Housing i Totals
30,931,166 - 30,931,166
3,361,270 3,361,270
2.364.115 2,364,115
36,656,551 36,656,551
4,588,565 4,598,645
626,539 626,539
3,418,456 3,418,456
218,421 218,421
210,120 210,120
426,812 426,812
22,981,870 22,981,870
1,334,085 1,334,085
33,804,868 33,814,948
2,851,683 2,841,603
98,367 98,367
(1,167,613) (1,167,613)
113.630 113,630
(955.616) (955.616)
_...1,896 067 _ .. _._ (10,080) . 1,885987
31,458,226 31,458,226
(2.287.611) {2.287.611)
29,170,615 29,170,615
$ 31,066,682 31,056,602




HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF ALAMEDA
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
PROPRIETARY FUND TYPES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015

Cash flows from operating activities:
Cash received from grants

Cash received from rents
Other miscellancous cash receipts
Cash payments to suppliers and landlords
Cash payments to employees
Net cash provided (used) in operating activities

Cash flows from capital and related financing activities:
Interest paid on long-term debt
Acquisition and construction of capital assets
Principal payments of debt
" Net cash (used) by capital
and related financing activities

Cash flows from investing aclivities:
Cash received from loans
Interest received
Net cash provided by investing activities

Net increase (decrease) in cash
Cagsh, beginning of year
Cash, end of year

Reconciliation of operating income (loss} to net cash
provided (used) by operating activities:
Operating income (loss)
Adjustments to reconcile operating income (loss) to
net cash provided (used) by operating activities:
Depreciation
Changes in assets and labilities:

“Décréase i accouls receivable T 07T
Increase in accounts receivable — other agencies
Decrease in tenants’ accounts receivable
Decrease in prepaid expenses
Decrease in inventory
Increase in accounts payable
Increase in amounts due other governments
Increase in security deposits payable
Decrease in unearned revenues
Increase in compensated absences
Increase in other liabilities
Decrease in OPEB payable

Net cash provided by operating activities

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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Enterprise Fund Component Combined
Housing Unit Totals

$ 30,888,244 $ - $ 30,888,244

3,374,365 - 3,374,365

1,356,007 - 1,356,007

(28,240,501) ; (28,240,501)

(3.864.190) - {3.864.190)

3,513,925 - 3,513,925

(1,112,120) ; (1,112,120)

(3,573,848) - {3,573,848)

(1,112.777) - (1,112.777)

(5,798.745) - {5,798.745)

772,881 - 772,881

87.489 - 87.489

860,370 - 860,370

(1,424,450) - (1,424,450)

35,520,922 - 35,520,922

§ 34096472 3 - $ 34096472

% 2,851,683 $ (10,080) $ 2,841,603

1,334,085 - 1,334,085
IR b 7% S - CT7,6637

(42,922) - (42,922)

19,393 - 19,393

88,453 - 88,453

2,804 _— 2,804

178,495 10,080 188,575

2,345 - 2,345

25,605 - 25,605

(1,025,771) - (1,025,771)

8,288 - 8,288

59,817 - 59,817

{(6,013) - (6.013)

3 3.513.925 3 - 3,513,925




HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF ALAMEDA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2015

Note 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The accounting policies of the Housing Authority of the City of Alameda (the Authority) conform
to accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America (GAAP) as applicable
to governmental entities. The following is a summary of the more significant policies:

A. Definition of Reporting Entity

The Housing Authority of the City of Alameda (the Authority) was established on August 8, 1940
by a resolution of the City of Alameda City Council. The Authority is governed by a seven

- member Board of Commissioners which is appointed by the Alameda, California City Council.
However, the Housing Authority is not considered to be a component unit of the City or any other
primary government. Two members of the Board of Commissioners are participants in programs
administered by the Commission. The members of the Commission are selected to serve for either
two or four year terms.

The basic financial statements include both the financial activities of the Housing Authority of the
City of Alameda and its discretely presented component unit.

Discretely Presented Component Unit

Island City Development (a California Nonprofit Corporation) was established in 2014 primarily
to ‘engage in acquiring, developing, rehabilitating, owning, and managing affordable housing for
low and moderate income individuals and families in the City of Alameda, California. The
Executive Director of the Housing Authority of the City of Alameda appoints the members of the
Nonprofit Corporation’s Board of Directors. The financial activity of the Nonprofit Corporation is
reported as a separate column on the government-wide financial statements.

A complete audited financial statement is separately issued for Island City Development and may
be obtained at the Housing Authority of the City of Alameda’s administrative offices located at
701 Atlantic Avenue, Alameda, California.

B. Government-wide and Fund Financial Statements

The government-wide financial statements (i.e. the statement of net position; the statement of
revenues, expenses, and changes in net position; and the statement of cash flows) report the
financial information of the Authority’s operations as a whole,

For financial reporting purposes, the Authority reports all of its operations as a single business type
activity in a single enterprise housing fund. Therefore, for the Authority the government-wide and
fund financial statements are the same. These basic financial statements are presented in
accordance with the standards established by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board
(GASB).
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HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF ALAMEDA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
“ JUNE 30, 2015
Note 1 (continued)

C. Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting, and Financial Statement Presentation

The financial statements and the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards are reported using the
economic resources measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recorded
when earned and expenses are recorded at the time liabilities are incurred, regardless of when related
cash flows take place. Nonexchange transactions are those in which the Authority receives value
without directly giving equal value in exchange. These transactions include revenues from federal,
state, and local assistance programs. Revenues from these sources are recognized in the fiscal year in
which all eligibility requirements have been met.

When the Authority incurs an expense for which both restricted and unrestricted resources may be
used, it is the Authority’s policy to use restricted resources first and then unrestricted resources as
needed.

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from nonoperating activities.
Operating revenues and expeunses generally result from providing services in connection with a
proprietary fund’s principal ongoing operations. The principal operating revenues of the Authority’s
enterprise housing fund are grants from federal funding agencies for housing assistance payments
earned, administrative and developer fees, and rental income from its owned housing units. Operating
expenses include employee services and supplies, administrative expenses, management fees, utilities,
housing assistance paymenis to landlords, and depreciation of its capital assets. All revenues and
expenses not meeting this definition are reported as nonoperating revenues and expenses.

The Authority applies all applicable Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) pronouncements
issued before November 30, 1989 in accounting and reporting for its proprietary operations.

D. Asscts, Liabilitics, and Net Position
1. Cash and Cash Equivalents

For purposes of the accompanying statement of cash flows all highly liquid cash and investments with
a maturity of three months or less when purchased and cash restricted by federal governmental
requirements are considered cash and cash equivalents.

Cash and cash equivalents include amounts in demand deposits and savings accounts. All of the
Authority’s investments can be converted to cash in a relatively short amount of time. Therefore, all
cash and investments and amounts of restricted are reported in the Statement of Cash Flows.

2. Restricted Assets

Restricted cash, cash equivalents, and investments, represent deposits that are used for replacement
reserves, security deposit payable amounts to tenants and amounts that are required by grants from
HUD to be used only to provide housing assistance for individuals and families that meet various

income, age, and employment standards.
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HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF ALAMEDA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2015
Note 1 (continued)
3. Receivables
All receivables are reported at their gross value and are reduced by an allowance for doubtful accounts
if such an amount is considered applicable.

4. Inventories and prepaid assets
All inventories are valued at cost using the first in/first out (FIFO) method. Inventories are recorded as
expenditures when consumed rather than when purchased.

Certain payments to vendors reflect costs applicable to future accounting periods and are recorded as
prepaid items the financial statements.

5. Capital Assets
Capital assets which include land, buildings, improvements, and furniture and equipment, are reported
at historical cost. Contributed capital assets are recorded at fair value at the time received. Interest
expense during any development periods is capitalized..

- Maintenance, minor repairs and replacements are recorded as expenses; extraordinary replacements of
property resulting in property betterments are charged to the property accounts.

Depreciation is charged to operations using the straight-line method based on the estimated uscful life
of the related asset. The estimated useful lives of the various asset categories are as follows;

Buildings 40 years

Improvements 15 years

Furniture and Equipment 5 to 10 years

6. Compensated Absences

It is the Authority’s policy to permit employees to accumulate earned but unused vacation and sick
pay benefits. All vacation pay is accrued when incurred. .

7. Taxes

The Authority is exempt from federal and state income taxes.

8. Encumbrances
Encumbrance accounting is not employed by the Authority.

9.Net Position

Net position represents the differences between assets and liabilities. Net position consists of
investment in capital assets, net of related debt; restricted net position; and unrestricted net position.
Net position invested in capital assets, net of related debt, consists of capital assets, net of
depreciation, reduced by the outstanding balances of borrowings used for the construction, or
improvement of those assets. Net position is reported as restricted when there are limitations
imposed on their use through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation or through external
resirictions imposed by creditors, grantors, or laws or regulations of other governments.
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HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF ALAMEDA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2015

Note I (continued)

10. Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources

In addition to assets and liabilities, the Statement of Net Position includes separate sections for
deferred outflows and inflows of resources. These separate sections represent a consumption or
acquisition of net position that applies to future periods and will not be recognized as outflows
(revenues) or inflows (expenses) until that time.

11. Pensions

For purposes of measuring the net pension liability (NPL) and deferred outflows/inflows of
resources related to pensions, pension expense, information about the fiduciary net position (FNP) of
the Authority’s California Public Employees” Retirement System (CalPERS) Plans and additions
to/deductions from the Plans’ fiduciary net position have been determined on the same basis as they
are reported by CalPERS. For this purpose, benefit payments (including refunds of employec
contributions) are recognized when due and payable in accordance with the benefit terms.
Investments are reported at fair value.

E. New GASB Pronouncements
During fiscal year 2015 the Authority adopted the following GASB Statements:

Statement No. 68 - Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions — an amendment of GASB
Statement No. 27.

Statement No. 71 — Pension Transition for Contributions Made Subsequent to the Measurement
Date — an amendment to GASB Statement No. 68.

F. Estimates

Management of the Authority has made certain estimates and assumptions relating to the reporting
of assets and liabilities and revenues and expenses to prepare the financial statements. Actual results
may differ from those estimates.

G. Budgets and Budgetary Accounting
Each year the Authority’s Board of Commissioners adopts an operating budget. This budget may be

revised during the year to give consideration to unanticipated revenue and expenditures primarily
resulting from events unknown at the time of the adoption of the annual budget.
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HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF ALAMEDA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2015
Note 2 - CASH AND INVESTMENTS

A. Policies

California law requires banks and savings and loan institutions to pledge government securities with a
market value of 110% of the Authority’s cash on deposit, or first trust deed mortgage notes with a
market value of 150% of the deposit, as collateral for these deposits. Under California Law this
collateral is held in a separate investment pool by another institution in the Authority’s name and
places the authority ahead of general creditors of the institution.

The Authority and its fiscal agents invest in individual investments and in investment pools. Individual
investments are evidenced by specific identifiable securities instruments, or by electronic entry
registering the owner in the records of the institution issuing the security, called the book entry system.
In order to increase security, the Authority employs the Trust Department of a bank as the custodian of
certain managed investments, regardless of their form.

The Authority’s investments are carried at fair value, as required by generally accepted accounting
principles. The Authority adjusts the carrying value of its investments to reflect their fair value at each
fiscal year end, and it includes the effects of those adjustments in income for that fiscal year.

Cash and cash equivalents are considered to be liquid assets for purposes of measuring cash flows.

B. Classification

Cash and investments are classified in the financial statements as shown below, based on whether or
not their use is restricted under the terms of Authority debt instruments or agency agreements. Cash
and investments as of June 30, 2015 are as follows:

Unrestricted $ 29,568,732
) __Restricted 4,527,740
Total cash and investments S 34,096,472

The $34,096,472 of cash and investments consists of $911,549 maintained on deposit in banks,
$445,231 maintained by loan servicing agencies, $32,739,442 deposited in the State of California
Local Agency Investment Fund (LATF), and $250 in petty cash. Of the amounts deposited into banks,
$250,000 is covered by federal deposit insurance. The remaining $661,649 as previously stated is
required by California law to be collateralized by governmental securities with a market value of
110% of the deposit or with first trust deed mortgages with a value of 150% of the uninsured amount.

The $445,231 of investments maintained by loan servicing agencies reflects amounts held by trust
departments of two lending agencies. These amounts will be used for future rchabilitation and
operating costs for some of the Authority’s housing complexes.
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HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF ALAMDEA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2015

Note 2 (Continued)

C. Investments Authorized by the California Government Code and the Authority’s Investment
Policy '

The Authority’s investment policy and the California Government Code allow the Authority to invest

in the following, provided rating of the issuers are acceptable to the Authority; and approved

perceniages and maturities are not exceeded. The table below also identifies certain provisions of the

California Government Code, or the Authority’s investment policy where the Authority’s Investment
. Policy is more restrictive.

Minimum Maximum Maximum
Maximum Credit in Investment
Authorized Investment Type Maturity Quality Portfolio One Issuer
Repurchase Agreements N/A N/A N/A N/A
California Local Agency

Investment Fund (LAIF) OnDemand  N/A N/A N/A
U.S. Treasury Bonds,

Notes & Bills N/A N/A N/A N/A
U.S. Agency & U.S. Government  N/A N/A N/A N/A
Bankers acceptances 270 Days N/A 40% 30%
Negotiable Certificates of Deposit  N/A AA 30% N/A
Time Certificates of Deposit N/A N/A 30% N/A
Medium Term Corporate Notes 5 Years N/A 30% N/A
Money Market Mutual Funds N/A AAA 20% N/A
County Agency Investment fund On Demand  N/A 30% N/A
Reverse Repurchase Agreements  N/A N/A N/A N/A
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HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF ALAMEDA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2015
Note 2 (continued)

D. Investments authorized by Debt Agreements and Governmental Grants

The Authority must maintain required amounts of cash and investments or fiscal agents under terms
of certain debt issues and governmental grants. These funds are unexpended bond proceeds or are
pledged as reserves to be used if the Authority fails to meet its obligations under these debt issuances
or governmental grants. The California Government Code requires these funds to be invested in
accordance with Authority policies, bond indentures or State Stature. The table below identifies the
investment types that are authorized for investments held by fiscal agents. The table also identifies
certain provisions of these debt agreements:

Minimum Maximum Maximum
Maximum Credit Percentage of  in Investment
Authorized Investment Type Maturity Quality Portfolio In One Issuer
For U.S. Department of Housing
and Urban Development Funds
Repurchase Agreements N/A N/A No Limit No Limit
U.S. Government Obligations
& Agencies No Limit N/A No Limit No Limit
State Obligations N/A N/A No Limit No Limit
Commercial Paper N/A N/A No Limit No Limit
Bankers acceptances 270 Days N/A 40% 30%
Certificates of Deposit N/A N/A 30% No Limit
Time Deposits N/A N/A No Limit No Limit
Qualified Financial Institution
--- -— General Obligations - — - - Uipen PDemand--- - - AAA--- - —-No-Limit - -No-Limit
Money Market Mutual Funds N/A AAA 20% No Limit
U.S. Treasury Bills, Notes
and Bonds No Limit N/A No Limit No Limit
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HdUSING AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF ALAMEDA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JUNE 30, 2015
Note 2 (continued)

For Non U.S. Department of

Housing and Urban

Development Funds

Prime Commercial Paper 180 Days  Highest Rating 15% 30%
Medium Term Notes 5 Years A 30% N/A
City of Alameda Bonds N/A N/A No Limit No Limit
State of California Obligations N/A N/A No Limit No Limit
U.S. Government Obligations : '

and Agencies N/A N/A : No Limit No Limit
Bankers Acceptances 270 Days N/A 40% 30%
Certificates of Deposit N/A N/A 30% No Limit
Repurchase Agreements N/A N/A No Limit No Limit
Money Market Mutual Funds N/A N/A No Limit No Limit
Trust Indentures N/A N/A No Limit No Limit
Mortgage & Equipment Lease

Obligations 5 Years AA 30% No Limit

E. Interest Rate Risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in the market interest rates will adversely affect the fair

value of an investment. Generally the longer the maturity of an investment the greater the

sensitivity of its fair value to changes in market interest rates. Information about the sensitivity of

the fair values of the Authority’s investments (including investments held by bond trustees) to

market rate fluctuations is provided by the following table that shows the distribution of the
... Authority’s investments by maturity: . . . __ . . .

12 Months One to More Than
Investment Type or Less Five Years Five Years Total
Local Agency Investment Fund  § 32,739,442 - - $32.739442
Total Investments $32739.442 § - § - $32,739.442
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HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF ALAMEDA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2015

Note 2 (continued)
F. Credit Risk

Generally, credit risk is the risk that an issuer of an investment will not fulfill its obligation to the
holder of the investment. This is measured by the assignment of a rating by a nationally recognized
statistical rating organization. Presented below is the actual rating as of June 30, 2015 for each
Authority investment type as provided by Standard and Poor’s except as noted:

Investment Type
Not Rated:
Local Agency Investment Fund $ 32,739,442

G. Concentration of Credit Risk

The Authority is required to disclose investments that represent a concentration of five percent or more
of investments in any issuer, held by individual Authority Funds in the securities of issuers other than
U.S. Treasury securities, mutual funds and external investment pools. At June 30, 2015 there were no
investments of this type.

H. Custodial Credit Risk
Custodial credit risk is the risk that in the event of a bank or brokerage failure, the Authority’s

deposits may not be returned. As previously stated the Authority’s bank deposits are either covered
by FDIC insurance or are collateralized.

22



HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF ALAMEDA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2015

Note 3 - CAPITAL ASSETS

The following is a summary of the Authority's changes in capital assets for the fiscal year ended

June 30, 2015:
Balance Adjustments Balance
6/30/14 Additions And Deletions 6/30/15
Land $ 13,443,808 § 1,200,000 § (31,754 § 14,612,054
Buildings and
improvements 38,842,573 2,426,784 (48,246) 41,221,111
Equipment 363,613 27,064 - 390,977
52,650,294 3.653.848 {80,000} 56,224,142
Less accumulated
Depreciation for:
Buildings and
Improvements (20,774,415) (1,308,685) 670 (22,082,430)
Equipment (307,532) (25.400) - (332.932)
(21,081,947) (1,334,085) 670 (22,415,362)
Capital assets,net $§ 31.568347 § 2.319,763 § {79,330) $ 33.,808.780
Note 4 - LONG-TERM DEBT
Following is a summary changes in long-term debt for the year ended June 30, 2015:
Balance Balance Current
6/30/14 Additions Deletions 6/30/15 Portion
e Bonds Payabler T T T T T e e
PNC Bank $ 5,798,955 § - $ (146,108) $ 5,652,847 § 154,865
Notes Payable:
Northmarq Capital LLC 14,291,000 - (171,894) 14,119,106 197,895
Northmarq Capital LLC 7,500,000 - (461,695) 7,038,305 522,072
City of Alameda 1,079,477 - (1,425) 1,078,052 1,439
County of Alameda 942,650 - - 042,650 -
US Bank 331,655 - (331,655) - -
Compensated Absences
{Note 6) 185.063 8,288 - 193,351 110,210
$§ 30,128,800 § 8288 $(1.112.777) §29.024311 § 986,481
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2015

Note 4 (continued)

The following is a schedule of debt payment requirements to maturity for long-term obligations other
than compensated absences;

Year Ending Principal Interest Total
June 30 Payments Payments Payments
2016 $ 876,271 § 1,211,902 $ 2,088,173
2017 916,529 1,177,269 2,094,198
2018 959,563 1,140,994 2,100,557
2019 1,004,273 1,102,997 2,107,270
2020 1,051,163 1,063,193 2,114,356
2021-2025 6,043,647 4,649,107 10,692,754
2026-2030 4,374,206 3,555,306 7,929,512
2031-2035 4,681,074 2,704,910 7,385,984
2036-2040 3,463,956 1,762,626 5,226,582
2041-2045 3,639,446 708,593 4,348,039
2046-2050 36,934 307,125 344,059
2051-2055 213,150 347,985 561,135
2056-2060 627,698 151,830 779,528
2061-2065 - - -
2066-2070 942,650 1,933,741 2,876,391

$28,830960 § 21817578 § 50,648,538

A description of the debt recorded at June 30, 2015 for the housing authority is as follows:
Bonds Payable:

" Adeed of trust bond payable was issued on April 1, 2005 totaling $6,300,000 for the Parrof village
and Eagle Village Apartments. The bonds payable are administered by PNC Bank. The bonds
accrue interest at a variable rate based upon the weekly short term bond rest rate. The bonds
require annual payments of principal and interest at least totaling $340,016. The bonds mature
April 15, 2035. The outstanding balance on the bonds total $5,652,847 at June 30, 2015,

Notes Payable:

Two loans were issued during the fiscal year ended June 30, 1997 from the City of Alameda.
These are non-interest bearing loans originally issued in the combined amount of $518,600. They
are secured by deeds of trust on nine properties located in Alameda, California. One of the notes is
deferred until Janary 1, 2027. The combined balances outstanding on these notes at June 30, 2015
were $508,052.
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Note 4 (continued)

A promissory note agreement for $570,000 was entered into with the City of Alameda on June 18,
1998. This note bears interest at 3% per annum. Both interest and principal payments on this loan
are deferred until the note’s due date of June 30, 2057. The outstanding balance on this note at
June 30, 2015 was $570,000.

The Authority entered into two separate note payable agreements with the County of Alameda.
One of the notes for $536,400 was entered into on March 15, 2011 and the other note for $380,000
was entered into on September 1, 2009. Both of these notes bear interest at 3% per annum.
Principal and interest are payable throughout the term of these loans if there are “Residual
Receipts” as defined by the loan agreements. A final payment is due on the outstanding loans
principal and accrued interest on the earlier of (1) the date of transfer of the properties, (2) the date
of any defaults on the loans, (3) July 30, 2067. The combined outstanding balances on these loans
at June 30, 2015 were $916,400.

The Authority assumed a loan payable originally entered into by the Filipino American
Community Services Agency payable to the County of Alameda. The principal balance assumed
and outstanding at June 30, 2014 is $26,250. This note bears no interest. However, if this note is
not paid when due the note will bear interest at 7% per annum for each day the note is not paid in
full. The note is payable upon sale or transfer of the property whose deed of trust secures the note.
The outstanding balance on this loan at June 30, 2015 was $26,250.

On June 30, 2014 the Authority entered into a mortgage note totaling $14,291,000 with Northmarq
Capital, LLC. The note is secured by the property referred to as the Esperanza Apartments. The
note bears interest at 5.63% per annum and requires combined monthly principal and interest
payments totaling $82,312. The note matures and is payable in full on July 1, 2044. The
- - oulstanding balance -on the note-at June 30,2015 was-$14;119;106. - - — - — e e

On June 30, 2014 the Authority entered into a mortgage note totaling $7,500,000 with Northmarq
Capital, LLC. The note is secured by the property referred to as the Independence Plaza
Apartments. The note bears interest at 3.75% per annum and requires combined monthly principal
and interest payments totaling $64,758. The note matures and is payable in full on July 1, 2026.
The outstanding balance on the note at June 30, 2015 was $7,038,305.
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Note 5 —- UNEARNED REVENUES

On January 4, 2014 the Authority became the “Successor Agency” for the Low and Moderate
Income Housing Assets of the former Community Improvement Commission of the City of
Alameda. As a condition of becoming the “Successor Agency” the Authority received cash and
notes receivable to pay the enforceable obligations of the prior Community Improvement
Commission of the City of Alameda. The amounts received to pay these enforceable obligations are
recorded as “unearned revenues”. At June 30, 2015 there was $17,492,110 remaining to pay these
enforceable obligations.

Note 6 - COMPENSATED ABSENCES

It is the Authority's policy to permit employees to accumulate earned but unused vacation leave up
to a maximum of their annual accrual rate plus 10 days. This leave will be used in future periods or
paid to employees upon separation from the Authority. Accrued vacation leave has been valued by
the Authority and has been recorded at $193,351 as of June 30, 2015.

It is the Authority’s policy to permit employees to accumulate earned but unused sick leave,
however, the value of unused sick leave is not payable upon separation from the Authority.

Note 7 — PRIOR PERIOD ADJUSTMENT

A prior period adjustment of $2,287,611 was made to decrease the beginning net position. The
adjustment was made to reflect the prior period costs related to the implementation of the net
pension liability.

The restatement of the beginning net position is summarized as follows:
Net position at June 30, 2014, as previously stated $ 31,458,226

Net pension liability adjustment (2.287.611)

Net position at June 30, 2014, as restated $ 29,170,615

26



HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF ALAMEDA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2015

Note 8 - PENSION PLAN
A. General Information about the Pension Plan

Plan Descriptions — The Plan is a cost-sharing multiple-employer defined benefit pension plan administered
by the Califoria Public Employees’ Retirement System (CalPERS). A full description of the pension plan
benefit provisions, assumptions for funding purposes but not accounting purposes and membership
mformation is listed in the June 30, 2013 Annual Actuarial Valuation Report. This report is a publically
available valuation report that can be obtained at CalPERS’ website under Forms and Publications. All
qualified permanent and probationary employees are eligible to participate in the Authority’s separate cost-
sharing multiple employer defined benefit pension plans administered by the California Public Employees’
Retirement System (CalPERS). Benefit provisions under the Plans are established by State statute and
Authority’s resolution. CalPERS issues publicly available reports that include a full description of the
pension plans regarding benefit provisions, assumptions and membership information that can be found on
the CalPERS website.

Benefits Provided — CalPERS provides service retirement and disability benefits, annual cost of living
adjustments and death benefits to plan members, who must be public employees and beneficiaries. Benefits
are based on years of credited service, equal to one year of full time employment. Members with five years
of total service are eligible to retire at age 50 with statutorily reduced benefits for Benefit Plan 23150, and
members with five years of total service are eligible to retire at 52 with statutorily reduced benefits for
Benefit Plan 27473. All members are eligible for non-duty disability benefits after 10 years of service. The
death benefit is one of the following: the Basic Death Benefit, the 1957 Survivor Benefit, or the Optional
Settlement 2W Death Benefit. The cost of living adjustments for each plan are applied as specified by the
Public Employees’ Retirement Law.

The Plans’ provisions and benefits in effect at June 30, 2015, are summarized as follows:

__ Miscellaneous Plans

Prior to On or After
Hire Date Jamuary 1. 2013 January 1, 2013
Benefit Formula ' 2.0% @ 55 2% at 62
Benefit Vesting Formula 5 years of service 5 years of service
Benefit payments monthly for life monthly for life
Retirement age 50-63 52-67
Monthly benefits, as a % of eligible compensation 1.426% 10 2.419%  1.0%to0 2.5%
Required employee contribution rates T% 6.5%
Required employer contribution rates 9.353% 6.73%
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Note 8 (continued)

Contributions — Section 20814(c) of the California Public Employees’ Retirement Law (PERL) requires
that the employer contribution rates for all public employers be determined on an annual basis by the
actuary and shall be effective on the July 1 following notice of a change in the rate. The total plan
contributions are determined through the CalPERS’ annual actuarial valuation process. The Plan’s
actuarially determined rate is based on the estimated amount necessary to pay the costs of benefits earned by
employees during the year, with an additional amount to pay any unfunded accrued liability. The Authority
is required to contribute the difference between the actuarially determined rate and the contribution rate of
employees.

For the measurement period ended June 30, 2014 (the measurement date), the active employee’s
contribution rates are 7.0 and 6.5 percent of annual pay, and the average employer’s rates are 13.01 and 6.70

percent of annual payroll,

For the year ended June 30, 2015, the contributions recognized as part of pension expense for each Plan
were as follows:

Contributions — employer $ 390,155
Contributions — employee $ 236,198

B. Pension Liabilities, Pension Expenses and Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources Related to
Pensions

The following table shows the Plan’s proportionate share of the Imscellaneous risk pool col]ectwe net
pension liability over the measurement period:

Proportionate Share of

N - Pension Liability
Balance at 6/30/13 — Valuation date $ 2,733,997 083%
Balance at 6/30/14 — Mecasurement date 1,874,684 - 076%

Total net changes during 2013 - 2014 $ (859.313) | 107%

The Authority’s net pension liability of $1,874,684 is measured as the proportionate share of the net pension
liability of $2,471,487,278 (or .076%). The net pension liability is measured as of June 30, 2014, and the
total pension liability for each Plan used to calculate the net pension liability was determined by an actuarial
valuation as of June 30, 2013 rolled forward to June 30, 2014 using standard update procedures. The
Authority’s proportion of the net pension liability was based on a projection of the Authority’s long-term
share of contributions to the pension plans relative to the projected contributions of all participating
employers, actuarially determined.
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Note 8 (continued)

For the year ended June 30, 2015, the Authority recognized pension expense of $(113,630) based on the
Plan’s measurement period ended June 30, 2014,

At June 30, 2014, the Authority reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources
related fo pensions from the following:

Deferred Deferred

Outflows of Inflows of

Resources Resources
Pension contributions subsequent to measurement date $ 390,155 $ 0
Differences between actual and expected experience 0 0
Changes in assumptions 0 0

Net differences between projected and actual earnings

on pension plan investments 0 (613,356)
Adjustment due to differences in proportions 452 (76,548)
Total § 390607 $ (689,904)

At June 30, 2014, the Authority reported $390,155 as deferred outflows of resources related to contributions
subsequent to the measurement date will be recognized as a reduction of the net pension liability in the year
ended June 30, 2016 (measurement period ended June 30, 2015). Other amounts reported as deferred
outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions will be recognized ‘as pension
expense as follows:

Measurement Deferred
Period Outflows/(Inflows)
EndedJune30  ~ ~  _ ofResources S
2015 $ 209,640
2016 (180,515)
2017 (175,083)
2018 (153,339)
2019 0
Thereafter 0

The amounts above are the net of outflows and inflows recognized in the fiscal 2014 measurement period.
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HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF ALAMEDA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2015

Note 8 (continued)

Actuarial Methods and Assumptions Used to Determine Total Pension Liability — For the measurement
period ending June 30, 2014 (the measurement date), the total pension liability was determined by rolling
forward the June 30, 2013 total pension liability. Both the June 30, 2013 total pension liability and the June
30, 2014 total pension liability were determined using the following actuarial methods and assumptions:

Miscellaneous
Plan
Valuation Date : June 30, 2013
Measurement Date June 30, 2014
Actuarial Cost Method Entry Age Normal
Actuarial Assumptions:
Discount Rate 7.50%
Inflation 2.75%
Payroll Growth 3.00%
Projected Salary Increase 33%—-142% (1)
Investment Rate of Return 7.5% 2
Mortality Rate Table Derived using CalPERS’ Membership
Data for all funds (3)
Post Retirement Benefit Increase Contract COLA up to 2.75% until

Purchasing Power Protection
Allowance Floor on Purchasing
Power Applies. 2.75% thereafter

(1) Depending on age, service, and type of employment
(2) Net of pension plan investment and administrative expenses; including inflation
(3) The mortality table used was developed based on CalPERS’ specific data. The table includes 20

~ " years of mortality improvements using Society of Actuaries Scale BB. For more details on this

table, please refer to the 2014 experience study report. The experience study can be found on
CalPERS website under Forms and Publications.

Discount Rate — The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 7.50%. To determine
whether the municipal bond rate should be used in the calculation of a discount rate for each plan, CalPERS
stress tested plans that would most likely result in a discount rate that would be different from the actuarially
assumed discount rate. Based on the testing, none of the tested plans run out of assets. Therefore, the current
7.50 percent discount rate is adequate and the use of the municipal bond rate calculation is not necessary.
The long term expected discount rate of 7.50 percent is applied to all plans in the Public Employees
Retirement Fund (PERF). The stress test results are presented in a detailed report that can be obtained from
the CalPERS website.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2015

Note 8 (continued)

According to Paragraph 30 of Statement 68, the long-term discount rate should be determined without reduction for
pension plan administrative expense. The 7.50 percent investment return assumption used in this accounting valuation
is net of administrative expenses. Administrative expenses are assumed to be 15 basis points. An investment return
excluding administrative expenses would have been 7.65 percent. Using this lower discount rate has resulted in a
slightly higher Total Pension Liability and Net Pension Liability. CalPERS checked the materiality threshold for the
difference in calculation and did not find it to be a material difference.

CalPERS is scheduled to review all actuarial assumptions as part of its regular Asset Liability Management (ALM)
review cycle that is scheduled to be completed in February 2018. Any changes to the discount rate will require Board
action and proper stakeholder outreach. For these reasons, CalPERS expects to continue using a discount rate net of
administrative expenses for GASB 67 and 68 calculations through at least the 2017-18 fiscal year. CalPERS will
continue to check the materiality of the difference in calculation until such time as we have changed our methodology.

The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was determined using a building-block method in
which best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return (expected returns, net of pension plan investment
expense and inflation) are developed for each major asset class.

In determining the long-term expected rate of return, CalPERS took into account both short-term and long-term
market return expectations as well as the expected pension fund cash flows, Using historical returns of all the funds’
asset classes, expected compound returns were calculated over the short-term (first 10 years) and the long-term (11-60
years) using a building-block approach. Using the expected nominal returns for both shortterm and long-term, the
present value of benefits was calculated for each fund. The expected rate of return was set by calculating the single
equivalent expected return that arrived at the same present value of benefits for cash flows as the one calculated using
both short-term and long-term returns. The expected rate of return was then set equivalent to the single equivalent rate
calculated above and rounded down to the nearest one quarter of one percent.

The table below reflects the long-term expected real rate of return by asset class, The rate of return was calculated
using the capital market assumptions applied to determine the discount rate and asset allocation. These rates of return
are net of administrative expenses. . . ._ .

New Strategic Real Return Real Return
Asset Class Allocation Years 1-10 (a) Years 11+ (b)
Global Equity 47.0% 5.25% 5.71%
Global Fixed Income 19.0% .99% 2.43%
Inflation Sensitive 6.0% A45% 3.36%
Private Equity 12.0% 6.83% 6.95%
Real Estate 11.0% 4,50% 5.13%
Infrastructure and Forestland 3.0% 4.50% 5.09%
Liquidity 2.0% -.055% -1.05%
Total 100.00%

(a) An expected inflation of 2.5% used for this period.
(b) An expected inflation of 3.0% used for this period.
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JUNE 30, 2015

Note 8 (continued)
Sensitivity of the Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability to Changes in the Discount Rate -
The following présents the Authority’s proportionate share of the net pension liability/ (asset), calculated
using the discount rate of 7.50 percent, as well as what the Authority’s proportionate share of the net

pension liability/ (asset) would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is 1-percentage point
lower (6.50%) or 1-percentage point higher (8.50%) than the current rate:

Discount Current Discount
Rateless 1% Discount Rate Rate Plus 1%
(6.5%) (7.5%) (8.5%)
Plan’s Net Pension Liability/ (Asset) $ 3335184 § 1,874,684 § 662,606

Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Posifion — Detailed information about each pension plan’s fiduciary net
position is available in the separately issued CalPERS financial reports.

Payable to the Pension Plan

At June 30, 2015, the Authority reported a payable of $24,204 for the outstanding amount of
contributions to the pension plan required for the year ended June 30, 2015.

Note 9 — OTHER POST EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (OPEB)

Plan Description:

~The Authority provides post-employment medical health care benefits to its retired employees and, in
some instances, their spouses. Benefits include coverage in the CALCALPERS health plan. The
Authority pays a portion of the premiums for the medical insurance for retirces. Monthly benefit
amounts for 2015 were $122 for eligible retirees. The majority of costs for medical insurance are the
responsibility of each retirce.

Eligibility:

The Authority’s retirees are eligible for membership in the plan upon retirement, Employees are eligible
for retirement at age 50 and with 5 years of service or upon disability. As of June 30, 2015, the
Authority had two retirees who were eligible for the program and receiving benefits. The Authority had
another 31 active employees, who are eligible for the program, but are not receiving benefits as they
have not yet retired from the Authority.

32



HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF ALAMEDA
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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Note 9 (continned)
Requirements of GASB 45:

The government Accounting Standards Board (GASB) has mandated disclosure of other post
employment benefit (OPEB) liabilities for all government employers beginning in 2009. During fiscal
years prior to 2012 the Authority’s employees were actually employees of the City of Alameda and not
employees of the Authority itself, therefore there was no OPEB obligation or expense recognized in
fiscal years prior to 2012. During fiscal year 2015 the Authority administered this program on a pay-as-
you-go basis and actual costs were expensed as incurred. To comply with GASB 45, the Authority
estimated it’s the present value of the projected benefits of the OPEB program using the Alternative
Measurement Method as permitted by GASB Statements Numbers 43 and 45.

Funding Policy:

The goal of GASB 45 is to match recognition of retiree medical expense with the periods during which
the benefit is earned. The entry age normal cost method effectively meets this goal in most
circumstances. The Authority has adopted an entry age normal cost method to determine the present
value of benefits and the actuarial accrued liability. The plan currently has no assets. The amortization
method is a level percent of payroll. The amortization period is thirty years. The Authority has adopted a
pay-as-you-go policy and is not currently funding this liability above the monthly requirement. The
Authority makes actual monthly payments for its portion of the retirees’ premiums. The payments for
2015 totaled $2,416. The Authority accrued a management determined estimate of $9,838 at the end of
the current fiscal year.

Annual OPEB Cost and Net OPEB Obligation:

The Authority’s annual OPEB costs (expense) is calculated based on the annual required contribution

(ARC) of the employer, an amount actuarially determined i accordance with the parameters of GASB
45. The ARC represents a level of funding that, if paid on an ongoing basis, is projected to cover normal
cost each year and amortize any unfunded actuarial liabilities (or funding excess) over a period not to
exceed thirty years. Interest on net OPEB obligation is based on the actuarial interest rate of 2% and is
computed on the unfunded amount. There was no interest on the net OPEB obligation for fiscal year
2015.
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JUNE 30, 2015

Note 9 (continued)

The following table shows the components of the annual OPEB cost, the amount actually contributed to

the plan, and any changes in the net OPEB obligation.

Annual required contribution

Interest on net OPEB obligation
Adjustment of annual required contribution
Annual OPEB cost

Annual OPEB Cost

Contributions made

Change in net OPEB obligation (asset)

Net OPEB obligation (asset), beginning of year
Net OPEB obligation (asset), end of year

$ 1,247
84

$ 1,331

$ 1,331
2,416
(9,760)
0,838

$§ 3.825

The Authority’s annual OPEB cost, the percentage of annual OPEB cost contributed to the plan, and the
net OPEB obligation for 2015 is as follows:

Net Ending
Annual OPEB  Actual Employer  Percentage OPEB Obligation
Year Ended Cost Contribution Contributed (Asset)
6/30/13 $ 1,598 $ 230 14.4% $ 1,368
6/30/14 $ 9,874 $ 1,404 14.2% $ 9,838
6/30/15 $ 1,331 $ 2416 181.5% § 3,825

Funded Status and Funding Progress:

~ The funded status of the plan based on an actuarial valuation as of June 30, 2015, was as follow:

Actuarial accrued liability (AAL) $ 37416
Actuarial value of plan assets -
Unfunded actuarial accrued liability (UAATL) $ 37416
Funded ratio (actuarial value of plan

Assets/AAL) 0%
Covered payroll $ 1,874,689

UAAL as percentage of covered payroll 2.0%

Actuarial valuations of an ongoing plan involve estimates of the value of reported amounts and
assumptions about the probability of occurrence of events in the future. Actuarially determined amounts
are subject to continual revision as actual results are compared to past expectations and new estimates
are made about the future,
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Note 9 (continued)
Actuarial Methods and Assumptions:

For the actuarial valuation, the entry age normal cost, level percent of pay; closed group method was
used. The actuarial assumptions include a 2% discount rate. A long-term inflation assumption of 2% was
used in developing Ievel percent amortization. The healthcare trend rate assumption is 9% for 2015
grading down to 6% by 2018. The actuarial value of assets is equal to the market value. The unfunded
actuarial accrued liability is being amortized over a period of 30 years as a level percentage of projected
payroll. The amortization period at June 30, 2015 is 30 years reflecting the Authority’s use of an open
amortization period.

The schedule of funding progress, presented as required supplementary information following the Notes
lo the Financial Statements, will present multi-year trend information that shows whether the actuarial
value of plan asseis is increasing or decreasing over time relative to the AAL benefits.

Note 10 - OPERATING LEASE

The Authority on March 14, 2003 entered into a lease agreement with Resources for Community
Development (RCD) to lease land to RCD until March 14, 2078. On October 14, 2004 the lease was
assigned to Breakers at Bayport, LP. Total rental income for the year ended June 30, 2015 under the
lease agreement was $1.

The Authority on October 4, 2006 entered into an amended lease agreement with Resources for
Community Development (RCD) to lease land to RCD until March 31, 2081. On March 24, 2008 the
lease was assigned to Shinsei Gardens Apartments, LP. Total rental income for the year ended June 30,
2015 under the lease agreement was $1.

The Authority on May 25, 2012 entered into a lease agreement with Housing Consortium of the East =~

Bay (HCEB) and Satellite Housing, Inc. to lease land to HCEB and Satellite Housing until May 25,
2087 for $100 lump sum payment. In November 2012 the lease was assigned to Jack Capon Villas, LP.

At June 30, 2015, the future rental income required under the lease for the land is as follows:

Fiscal Year
.__Ending
2016 $
2017
2018
2019
2020
Thereafter

Rt S S R O R o R

—
[u—

—_
[\
~J
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Note 11 - JOINT POWERS AGREEMENTS

Workers' Compensation [nsurance

The Authority participates in a joint venture under a joint powers agreement (JPA) with the California
Housing Workers' Compensation Authority (CHWCA). CHWCA was formed to provide workers'
compensation insurance coverage for member housing authorities. At December 31, 2014, there were
thirty-three members. The relationship between the Authority and CHWCA is such that CHWCA 1is not
a component unit of the Authority for financial reporting purposes.

Condensed audited financial information for the year ended December 31, 2014, is as follows:

Total assets $ 24,496,334
Total liabilities (16,484,222)
Total net assets $§ 8.012.112
Total revenues $ 4,702,889
Total expenses (3.894.815)
Net decrease in net assets $ 808,074

CHWCA had $15,709,514 of unpaid claims and claim adjustment expenses outstanding at December 31,
2014. The Authority’s share of year end assets, liabilities, or retained earnings has not been calculated.

Property and Liability Insurance

The Authority parficipates in a joint venture under a joint powers agreement (JPA) with the Housing
Authorities Risk Retention Pool (HARRP). HARRP was formed to provide property and liability
insurance coverage for member housing authorities. At December 31, 2014 there were 87 members. The
relationship between the Authority and HARRP is such that HARRP is not a component unit of the
Authority for financial reporting purposes.

" Condensed audited financial information for the year ended December 31, 2014 is as follows:

Total assets $ 29,370,151
Total liabilities {8.843.451)
Total net assets $ 20,526,700
Total revenues $ 9,618,533
Total expenses {9,025,225)
Net increase (decrease) in net assets $ 593,308

HARRP had $3,764,659 in outstanding claims liabilities at December 31, 2014. The Authority's share of
year end assets, liabilitics, or retained earnings has not been calculated.
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JUNE 30, 2015

Note 12 - CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
Federal Grants
The Authority has received funds from various federal, state, and local grant programs. It is possible
that at some future date it may be determined that the Authority was not in compliance with
applicable grant requirements. The amount, if any, of expenditures which may be disallowed by the

granting agencies cannot be determined at this time although the Authority does not expect such
disallowed amounts, if any, to materially affect the financial statements.

Note 13 — SUBSEQUENT EVENTS
Management evaluated all activity of the Authority through December 16, 2015, and concluded that

no subsequent events have occurred that would require recognition in the financial statements or
disclosure in the notes to the financial statements.
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HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF ALAMEDA
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
AS OF JUNE 39, 2015

Schedule of Funding Progress for OPEB

Unfunded UAAL asa
Fiscal Actuarial Actuarial Actuarial Actuarial Percentage
Year Valuation Value of Accrued Accrued  Funded Covered of covered
Ended Date Assets Liability Liability Ratio Payroll Payroll

June 30, 2013 June 1,2013 § 0§ 41,033 § 41,033 00% $ 2,620,894 1.6%
June 30, 2014 June 1,2014 § 0§ 41,033 § 41,033 0.0% $ 2,735,657 1.5%
June 30, 2015 June 1, 2015 §$ 0% 37416 § 37416 0.0% $ 1,874,689 2.0%

Note — Prior to April 22, 2012 the employees working at the Authority were actually employees of the City of
Alameda. Effective April 22, 2012, these former city employees officially became employees of the Housing
Authority of the City of Alameda. The Authority’s OPEB information prior to April 22, 2012 was included as a part
of the OPEB valuation information for the City of Alameda as a whole and the Authority’s portion could not be
determined individually.
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HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF ALAMEDA
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
AS OF JUNE 30, 2015

Schedule of the Authority’s Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability

Plan No. 1 Plan No. 2
6/30/14 6/30/14

Plans’ Proportion of the Net Pension Liability/(Asset) 0.0301% (1) .00003%
Plan’s Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability/(Asset) $ 1,873,089 (2) $ 1,595
Plan’s Covered-Employee Payroll $ 2,594,763 $ 112,824
Plan’s Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability/(Asset) as

a Percentage pf its Covered-Employee Payroll 72.19% 1.41%
Plan’s Proportionate Share of the Fiduciary Net Position as a

Percentage of the Plan’s Total Pension Liability 82.97% 83.02%
Plan’s Proportionate Share of Aggregate Employer Contributions $ 446,175 (3/4) $ 211

Notes to Schedule:

(1} Historical information is required only for measurement periods for which GASB 68 is applicable.

(2) Covered-employee payroll represented above is based on pensionable earnings provided by the employer.

(3) The plan’s proportionate share of aggregate contributions may not match the actual contributions made by the
employer during the measurement period. The plan’s proportionate share of aggregate contributions is based on
the plan’s proportion of fiduciary net position shown on line 5 of the table above.

{(4) This data is not required to be displayed by GASB 68 for employer’s participating in cost-sharing plans, but it is
being shown here because it is used in the calculation of the plan’s pension expense.

Schedule of the Anthority’s Pension Plan Contributions

Plan No. 1 Plan No. 2
6/30/14 6/30/14
Actuarially Determined Contribution $ 283501 (2) $ 16,815
Contributions in Relation to the Actuarially Determined Contribution (488.418) (16.815)
Contribution Deficiency (Excess) $ (204917 $ 0
Covered Payroli $ 2,594,763 (34 $ 112,824
Contributions as a Percentage of Covered-Employee Payroll 18.82% (3) 14.90%

Notes to Schedule:
*Amounts presented above were determined as of June 30. Additional years will be presented as they become
available.

(1) Historical information is required only for measurement periods for which GASB 68 is applicable.

(2) Employers are assumed to make contributions equal to the actuarially determined contributions.

(3) Covered-employee payroll represented above is based on pensionable earnings provided by the employer.

(4) Payroll from prior year ($2,519,187 and $109,538) was assumed to increase by the 3.00 percent payroll growth
assumption.
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HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF ALAMEDA
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015

Federal Grantor CFDA Number  Expenditures
Department of Housing and
Urban Development (HUD):
Direct Programs:
Section 8 Moderate Rehabilitation —

Single Room Occupancy 14.249 § 197442
Section 8 Housing Choice Vouchers 14.871 24,795,486
Family Self —Sufficiency 14.896 32,522

Total U.S. Department of Housing
and Urban Development 25,025,450
Total Federal Expenditures $ 25,025450

See Notes to Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards.
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HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF ALAMEDA
NOTES TO THE SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
JUNE 30, 2015

. The Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards presents the activities of federal award programs
expended by the Housing Authority of the City of Alameda. The Housing Authority of the City of
Alameda’s reporting entity is defined in Note 1 to the financial statements,

. The accompanying Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards includes the federal grant activity of
the City of Alameda Housing Authority under programs of the federal government for the year ended
June 30, 2015. The information in this schedule is presented in accordance with the requirements of the
Office of Management and Budget (OMB) Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments, and
Non-Profit Organizations. Because the schedule presents only a selected portion of the operations of
NRHA, it is not intended to and does not present the financial position, changes in net position, or cash
flows of the NRHA.

. The Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards is presented on the accrual basis of accounting. This is
the same method of accounting as was used in the preparation of the Authority’s basic financial
statements.

. The Housing Authority of the City of Alameda did not pass-through any federal awards to subrecipients
during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2015.

43




£or'000ves £6Y'009'vES 08 03 £80'263'EES LZEELS 494'3885 SPEESY WSAND (RICL 2L
. . BIEG.10) PIRK SWSSY St
WOl BNt Wb 48| phl
as 0% 03 SBUCIIBAI SIBIOSAE) S SAURWOllY L Skl
ore'sLe DPE'SLS 0FSCLS . SoUoUBAlL Bl |
SER'ZES cep'ees 5287es 078 sjpesy JeyjQ pUE sesusdxg pledsld bl
- . _ Fanoer WaINg Jo 1ewAey Joj PSjaIsay - SIPWISSAl CEL
oeefles'es . oes'los’ss 995/ Lb'E8 72.'8pLS PSoUISEY - SsusaN| 2EL
PED'LES'BTE ¥E0'L25'828 S26'L6L'923 BAD'S/ES pIomssN - SUALSSAY| Lel
S0E'SSvS WS'CEFS 0% 0% B9y vIbs 0% " reg'oes SLN0TY (RGO 0} SSOURMOIRY O 19N 'SSIARARSEY [EIL OZ1
YOR'ETS PoE'eTs . TE5°7ES LIS . . TigRAROSY 1SR paNISYY BZL
£RZ'SEHS- S9E'sele- €655 18- Bl ~ SIUNCOOY ARANOG o} SUBMOLY L B2
£oB'S0LS £95'56L¢ £95'caLe o B Agencosy prels gzl |
. ) . WSS - SGRASCSY SSERbUCH B 'SUBCY 'SP £Z)
0s 0% o8 g3 BUIO - SINO93Y INYGNGC 10} SAdRMaly 2'82L
001 ‘ELS 00L 18- QoLeLs- SIUELD | - Sjunpacy _aﬁaoa ol BOUBNO|Y | 'GEL
B.T'29% 61Z'953 &iz'5cE SUBUS | - S)qEARIDY SWNCATY SZ
B89'/523 iy #G0'GCES tes'ts SNCBUBIRORI - SIGENS SINCasY CCL
ebe'ess EPTERS EFE'CBS JELLIBACS JSUID - BITRAIDI9Y SILUNDOTY T
Z96'0L zegots § 0 i i zes'ols 5205001} JBUIO (INH - SITBNEI9Y SILADICY. ZZL
BL0'9S 61068 BLD'OS 519300l Whid - Sl0EAISRY SNNBASY LTL
B0L'E00'TE '201'000'78 as 0% uoeiels | LIRS 1 gmRELLS ysE0 =01 00k
. B N e " SSIET USLING J0 JUBUiAB 101 PRIoUISEY - USeD G |
251 LZSS £BLLZSS £51'LZ5S - sisodeq Ainses s - Uses L
LLTShrS IR A= LLTCES 03 pejelsay JSUKD - USED ELL
. wawdopAs pUR UNRRZRLSPO - PAISSY - USED: 7L
869'LrCLS B88'L0'LS IEL'8PeS Lzg'els 098'5LLS peRLISaIN - UseT LLL
Tpeiasaid c.._m._mo_a FATERSSE | i
Agplosig fesouns . E.n,om =2)bulg sialonon i
el W3 jerang -3un JBe Aruey | [OOTERIST | wenelaERy sol0uD |
Emcom_EoU Pt S8B°L apiepon ) Busnak L/8L "
] g UCHOSg G2 L ;
SL0T/OE/S0 PUT feaj [eosld | EEl-wpsupnY isdA L uoissigns

Alewuing 1991 g soueey spIM
YO WA Y
{Zoovd) ALIMOHLAY DNISNOH Y

Kypug

1NV TY 20 ALIO

44



o1 Sng - welbond JEW| g

GG0'LZeE C50'1L295 .. . LEELS £5p'PESS GoECes Sy - selnqel] peniady obe

o _ . . SBRYIGEr JBLND UG P

sBlyas Liog u_.BEuaO i+ lad ctmﬁ.mcnuw 1o uojped Emtzo ]

j ClELE

LZ'048% LITOIS LLZ'eL83 sbefuonsEeloid Biden - igod WhaxBuot 1o uogiod WeLnsy eV

IpreTs' LS 151'TE8' e | PLETE' LS 0% . anuBAex PAUIZALI TYE

BERGLSE R'ILES 2u'0L0E sysodeq Anosg JueusL ¥

) JLBLILIBACS; LI - SIGBAES SJUNGIDY SOE

speldid {I.& - a|geA=y JUNDSTY ZEE

SPE'ZS SPETS . spe'ze SWeIEold VHd QFiH - Sigefed Sunosay 1o

852 '299% £5.'200% 6027858 BiqeABy JSaUeIU] PENISSY SZE

... o o Auigen AusBumuon paniosy pze

aLZoLLE 0LELLS ‘pee'ces " geaves UORIO JUSIINGD - SPOUSSIY PRIRSYSGWeD PSNIasy £28

. siqeded $9XE L lDiAed /BB PENIOYY LZS

N 1824 sAeQ 06< Ajqeied Siuncody €18

oL6'8Ls oLs'gLs o020'0Ls 58L'2% o0ze'Ls LeR're m;mn_ 06 => FRiRg SWNEIY ZLE

tN_Em.;D Hieg Lig

092'958'285 09.'958'22% ‘o8 BPE'TS |7£'105'18% 1Za'ess zoB'08.LS S30.1052% 0 MOIANO PIBISG PUE 19SSy [EIA) 0z

209'0588 409'03ES EVE'ES £0S's/z8 S5L% LS SEoMOSEY 6 MANNG pALIAE] 00T

00L'LOE 7S 002188 b5 0% as COL' 198 % os 0% 51985V JUSLNC-USN TRI0L OBk

. ,wmha,Em_b G Uy sjusunsaal 921

B sessy IBN0 b

) WSLND Lop - mﬁw..a_wumm SRID £2)

ANy

. FRRg.o ANSLND LN - 2I08N302M mmumm»._qf..ﬁm SUROT 'SBION. T

0Ze'ess'Els OE6'ess'el s ozs'eEs'eLe WBLNA-LON - S|genecay sabeBuap pus steeT 'SaleN L/ L

oRA'B08'ces 09.2'9C8'Ees ns 0% O8LB08'EES 08 ol uapeio2idsg pYERUINTaY 10 JeN w,._mmmd. Euden oL ool

u:.zu:.rmm.cE f=<18

s50.0014 Ul UORINKSUoD /gL

ZOE'SLY'ZES- ZOE'CLy TEg- I£2'slR'Tzs- ST ops- vopzsidaq RIEIRLNTY ggL

Z0L'9LE68 Z0L'8.5'68 Z0L'2/583. | SiUsleASIdLY PIRUSSeST Sol

uozasILpY - Asuysey 9 uswdinbg aumung peL

LI5'06ES Li6'068S Zee'nces . STL'OPS sBuyjemg - Asulyoep g uswdinby 'sinyung esl

BO0'SHYLES 600'6Pa"1ES 500SFY' LES sSupIng Zal
PS0'ELE LS PEO'ZLA'PLS ve0'zLa'vLS

puet gl

45



09.'B5E'2Re 092'955'28S 05 679'7S 978105188 Lze'els 79510826 1ia - Affb3 PUE s=0iriosey 4o Smayu] PRLSIBC 'SSRIGETT IR0 (09
Z09'9g0' eS| Z09'850°LES cao'oLs- [ £0p- 18r'vSZ 1LES =Frg Wi £60'ecrs- UGIYSO / zmﬂfmz - Aynb3 eio), ELG
COG'EEY'LTS coc'eco’szs ! pmo'Dre- e phpien'ozs | TS | £50'287%- T uosad 19N PIOMSBILN FRLS
CLLCHPS LTSS o LLZrrS . . Ualiisad 1eN pRlouiseY FLLG
QT8 LI6'PS 0z8’L26'rs 078" L16YS spesY [BHdeD) Ul JUSUASaA| 18N +'E0S
¥05'5808 YOE'E8SE srE'ES £L2'06r8 TPEestS SBOIN0SEY 4o MO BRLRISA oY
VT EL'055 ¥oTTLO0EE | 0go'DLs Z20'%E PEE'95L 8PS SreZs £/5°5895 SSPNGEr (2101 00T
£0L'090'cES €01 '090'0eS 0s s TLLSIE'EES as lee'vris SR RSUAD-UON B30, 058
605'sE'LE 60524818 ) $89'98Z'L8 £e8'Less SBNNIGEN 5340 PUB LOISUSd PIncoy JGE
. . , SaNGEN & a5 S8

JRLINY uep - Agigery uea goe

LpL'egs 1bL'ens 158508 vii'8Le JUSIND UGN - S30UasgY palesusdiucs panioey #Ge
ya.LErLS FOLERLS PLEFLE S0 - SSRIGRN] WSLNo-UCl SGE

) sSummonog Buneiede - uaung jo 18N Ygeg wisrBuon zge

e N o ERIEYE
Basves izs B9 bSs L28 BuSpes LS sBabyoyysieloig 12Yden - usLng Jo 8N 'ieg Wepbun Les
LEL'Z85 08 LGL'EGE'0ZS ¢ poo'ole 7Z0%E E'ovroes ore'zs 780'05% SSHIGENT WeLND [B0L OLE

WRLND - At ueo gre

46



ZSELLOLS ZEELO'LE por'as 2LV LODzES Sayensiipy - staphgiLes yeuey seAoidwa 00SLE
Cuiey pue Bulsusapy 0ovLE
oo Buidssn-sueg OLELS
. sax wewsbeuey' doels
00R'LES 00E’'LES 5/0'ES Goes 175’08 o sed Bugpny (0ZLs
v8'I0LT8 vIE'2CL 28 J0B'EES | pl'seg'ly ] BEPEES | poR'Eess  SsUEES SAJERSILLIPY 00LLE
gpo'gon'es Sbe'aeg'eEs 0% COS'8ES ! pgL'BoL'Tig:  Zplels 2Zy'PES'rTS enusAaY jEIRL 00004
e a5 o8 i s PEIMISEY - BUIOOU| JUBUISSAUT CODE.
286'50L5 2e6'50LS ‘sea'E0lS _ ) )58y [auden Jo 2195 uo 507 10 LED OoSLL
608 bET TS BOR'ETTS os Eog'est'zs o L9CLS aNUBASY IR0 00GLL
" oesocls 9RY'SLE 989°CLY . Aisnodsy pneld oopl )
. . )388Y J6 925 10 1500 QLELL
SIBS IO} PiaH 515587 JO LoNSOdsiUOY SPestols O0ELL
. Swoou| 15981y aBEBuOY ooZLL
156585 JEE £95'365 vOb'LS PJOINSDIUN - SW0U| WSUNSSA| OLLZ
820'pE'9s 8E0'rE'9s 5E0'FPE'aS SIBID MRLILIBACD LI (0R0Z
SnUery 89y =0 L. 0010/
T $e8445W0 0SI0L
351 PAInRS S MOIE Db 0L
@04 Budssy Yooz 0820,
so4 wawelEURy 98y G702
254 wewsheuen Ofs02
. _ . sjueisy pjdes olens
gEL'295'eS BT 285'PES 003'823 TY'GLE 1 99l LeeEs SREID Buelad Ykl AnH 00902
ZES'BLY'ES ‘zegeibes 1 og o$ ZES'BLY'ES a5 0% _ anlsasy] JUBURL [330). 00504
79T /53 zoz' /88 o z9z'/ss . JBUIG - INUSADY UBUS L, Q004
0Lz 1es'es DITIEEES 0.Z'19E'ES . BnleAsy [RLSY WelB) 18N 0080,
WeBe ASLEARS5E r
. paILEsald foumoyng wooy aibulg SIBUINA/A |
oL Wna elans  Amesiosg - yan! L o [B0oTmEg 2 volRliasey 201040
weuodwen Lg LSS58, Siepow §  iSuisncH /8L
il uaposg 5rE Tl

S10Z/0E/90 PUT Jeax [eosid

egL-yipeupny tadh) usissiugng

Aeunng asusdxy pue anusaRy 2B Spug

VO YAInY Y

(Z9OVD) ALIEOHLNY ONISNOH

VAIWVIY 40 ALID

47



STk

9/8'zv3 gee'ie8 gee'ss BoURINSY ALIGEN OZL08

G 496 ovz' 198 oz 198  aeueinsly fuadold OLLSE"
"oELDIzs DBLDITE 0% 08 T dermie 3 CeE'TLS SRS SADSICI TG L DO0GE
. _ , . . i SonES SAReI0l - SURNGUINED NjeuRE FRiodiE pades
) .._m_.._«o wmug.umwmauum#uua OBﬂmW

0ZL'DIZS ozl olzs SSLUBLE see'TLE mmou ﬁgcoo_meo SI0NRS BNORIOL] DTS5
, - . 1T - SSONBS SIS0 Srmm

eLe'BER'TS | 815'858'23 as 08 | onz'niets 08 i zieds SOURUSKIBI 2101 DOOYS
e o T TaausUEUIRINE

) .Bm,momw OES0ZE bogsaes bmc_EO sUCHAYLNGS Welieg sehodw] oOCks
Ceazer e ceeEryLe " eel’gseLs wa vwm SI0RTUOD m:o_ﬁ_mﬁo puE acusLEjURY] AlRLIRIC oo.mwm.
) Relyasy ._.m.h.w.wmw LeC'ELES ped'es wnmm_m:m«mz suoneSdy | ucm SoUBUSIURI ARUIpIQ omﬂ%%
i 1890l LED BN S LR IPOL S ) toge - suonRIede pue ssURURiUR Y ABUpIO COLPS
2650798 " geg'szas 0% 0% eLE'oLss 0% 92958 SSHIAN JRI9). 0ODES
1878 1658 o vezs 2618 FSURtXS SSRINA JBWI0 00885

. ” o o S3RL - SUONQUILED Yeuag safoidid 008G
vEL'Sezs  peLeees 2692628 oS BmeS 00oEs
B o " Joqery Goces

. . 1Bhg ObES

£06'9/8 ~ ene'sys LZE'GLS Zeos 525 O0EES
BLTYELS BILYELS OLSALIS 8995 AypenReld GOZES
829018 - ee0LY ser'cgrs Zre'te e TOLES
\2r'8LES Lzh'atzs g zZ6lLs zel'cels 0% ) n,.vonmdm ) SSOINSS JUBUS ) [BI9L OJSZS
515698 '9/¢'e9g , LoL'eas i ams 12UI0 - SUARS WRUDL 005Z5
ZIE'STS zie'me 6L oeL'ozs B $30LMEG JUBLA] - SUOWNQUILGY WauRg 3AoIdWT 00EZS
§1500) UCIRI0RY (CTES |

e2r'Z2LS ELF'T2LS LOB'BES TIS'TES SBUB|ES - SBANBS UBUSL COLZE
- o84 JuewWwabeURy 1988y 000Z8

SFe'sRS TS | ShG'EeeYS pe0‘oLs zes'les | izi'ize'es | 6TL'EES £99'895'L% SAENSIILRY - Bugelsd) RIS, 00OLE
. o . BUO 006H6

. peaLRAC PRI ALSLE
azs'ars azg'eps 829'LE 06'e83 gee'els [eARIL JOgLE
oea'ovLs £ER'0pLS 0e0'cLS | SBOSHLS - lo'ne * osuadxg 1691 Q0246
089'/598 009’1693 7L e0g'sce8 sEo'o0es sesuadxg sOWO 0SLE

48



SpUCH pue SUeoT 'SAION UG SPES%0IG DSODL

I Juayodwes cywoy sisjstel] Buneiedo QpooL

Wewwamns ARug oywoy siejsuel] Bugeisdo pECaL

;e Japsuen Buneiedg 0zogl

uj Jassuer )| Buneiads QLoD

- 193'285'7ES leo'zas'ret | geo'ors TZ5'78S 1 Len'pESS | ZHVIGLS § Dep'oes'vEs  ssstadxg jRio) 00006
. , i : ’ . _ seundicy WDy suun BUIPA] 00946

SPUN A [BUSLEACE) - jBiliieg |BdiSuld 1050 OC2L6

‘spund felusiuies - SAZING IRydes 0el6

ssse0] PNEld 0056

oR0'PeELg | CEC'PEE'LS . SEOPEE'LS | S ) o " ssuadxz vonewsideq OOF/G
586 /98 R HE i gopes B | uI-AaENod dvH 0SEE
SHe'PLE TS, ELF'bLE'ETS | o CEMLYGS | oZosesiTEs | sslfed souRsissy Busnel 00Si6
. _ pazisltes-uoy - sassoT ARNSED Q0246

286'5158  § . " eeesleg 9E6'51E% _ SOUBUSIUTEIN AIBUIPIORIXS (0L/6
P N T | ’ e iy o ’ ) it ; ’ sasUadXI]
oegi2L5es 099'174'9T8 | 0B0'0IS- z0ys | o/elovs | ELuGs | oesdees'us Buneiade, 0 eruensy U0 1o Ssao 000s6
8509 0LS i Boo'srlOlS | os00LS ZZE'TES | SCO'EE0'SS | BTLEES 528'LL6'LS . sesusexs Buieisdo 12101 00598
g9’ 26l E19'/91'15 0z 08 L5938 s s 1560 UchezIcwy pUS Ssuedi SIS (850, 00/06

51500 SNSS! pURE JO com.NuEaE{ GELS6

| {uus | Bue pue Joys) sigeied SSioN He ISR 02296

BLYI9L'LE oD IRX- I £1528L'L8 o aiqehed (spuog J0) s6ebiiow Jo saei) Q1296

988'5ECS SBE'EETS 08 s 0S'BrS 0s arelsels sAsUBM |RIBLSD JALIK [12). 60005

asuadxz dURRAIS O0R05

UG - JEP-PEE 00955

sebeBuoy - jcop-peg 00596

T e99'7zs 2e0'z7e 1 ee'ele CRO'ES sywiEy Jueus | - 98P Peg [0FSS

sexe) Jo nef Ul siuswied Q0S9s

; seoussqy pelesusdwod 0LZSE

TTLIES £zT'Lles 105'vES gLe'alLs : sosuadyg jRiSUSD JSU0 OGZSE
9TATELE SZE'CELS ol a6vs 220418 0$ osL'zEs SINILUSI BOLENSUL IO DELES

£5°8 Lig'ss grL'ss B5rS SoUBINSL) BYIC 1Y 07 LS8
898'CLS gee'se T Lp5'988 _ EPE'SLS UoesUBGLUSS SUBLLYION, OELEE

49




spuny Jojoe Buisno Weuseselday LOBEL

sluatlfied 3910BS J480 d440 OLSEE

SIsRUAING 2nnilsegul ool

sesERnd Sjuswansidiug plodEseaT 05aLY

$SFRURING PASASLIWRY - JRwdinbT g auriwng opeLL

 sss2uming Buamd - eudinb @ smyung 0galLl

sesaaind BUBING OZgLL

saseyRIng puUE OLELL

+ ysen sseuxg D47l

OMrLE

OLriz

) £28 gE80Z DOSES SUIUOH LN 46 JSgWnN 0LZkL
VIEsT PaesT bgog 0% awLEZ | SigEIRAY SUMNOW N 05LLL
o8 03 o 03 " Ry sppuieg souesssy Busted 0alLL
£00'05Te- £80'567%- £o0'cozs- AInb3 894 SATRASIIRIPY CZLLL &
. Jeulo - sunooay Alanaq Jo) aclemely U SSBUBYD COLLL
: , Sy T BTG
o STHDSRAS ANGE JoL Sovesmey UL sSBURUYS BaaL), -
AIGEr Siysusg souRRABSRLE) [EIedS Ul SaBURUD Q8L
Al uapsLR.LL UDSUSd pazZIuEeosiun Ul SeEUBLD 0011
" eatiep Agiasn WeBlnueg ) sSBURL) 0501}
, sauBieg BoUssqy pejesuadLLay) U saBLELD 0G0LL
o mw., - ez T P e g SIS O
i s Ss9le'Le . 8pE'0E08 Uz SlEisULL Anba SILANASOIs: DALEA SR, DAL L
9TTBSr LES SEZ'8Sp'LES os 03 S667EB'0E8 ] GLTLLS S6'L0LS Aynbz Suuibsg oot
LIZ'9/85 Li2'9i88 0s sl (Wra:Vi-c -2 0% 0% ] swswed [ediould jgag vy pesrbay 0Z0LE
ot e o N i o o \ ) SHSUSHXS BID.1
(0558818 /66'629'18 080'0LS TZ0'YS £sL'10L'2s ] ¥e0'1928 (13U) 1A BNUANSY B0 10 (ACUSIOUEE) SS501T. CG00L
0% os o3 o8 sl a8 08 {sasn) saoinog Susuedl Jeyin (=)o) ooLoL

g - welbose puejeslols ussmsq SIBjSURI| #6001

u) - 109l0.4 pue Welfold Uaemaq sIglsSuURl] £800L

NG JjSuEI L YSeD S880xT Welald Je| 26001

W} JayBUBS L UseD S590X3) Ralold 1Ol 1E00L

{ssoures JaN) Swa); (210808 OR00L

ssojuleD JaN ‘siwey AleuproRang 02004

saeg Apadosg woy Spe2solt 1000

50



office locafon mailing addmss
2700 Yognaclo Valiey Road, Ste 230 2977 Ygnacio Velley Rd, AMB 460
Walnut Creek, CA 94598 Walnut Creek, CA 94598

‘CROPPER ROWE, LLP

"CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS |

{425} 932-3860 tel {925) 476-9930 afax

REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING
AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS
BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED
IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

Independent Auditers’ Report

To the Board of Commissioners
Housing Authority of the City of Alameda
Alameda, California

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of the business-type
activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the Housing Authority of
the City of Alameda, California, as of and for the year ended June 30, 2015, and the related notes to
the financial statements, which collectively comprise the Authority’s basic financial statements and
have issued our report thereon dated December 16, 2015.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the Housing Authority
of the City of Alameda, California’s internal control over financial reporting (internal control) to
determine the audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing
our opinions on the finarcial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the

——————effeetiveness—of the—Housing—Autherity—of—the—City—of-Adameda;-California’s—internal-eontrols- — - - —

Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the Housing Authority of the City
of Alameda, California’s internal control.

A deficiency in infernal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent or
detect and correct misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a
combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a
material misstatement of the entity’s financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and
corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies,
in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention
by those charged with governance.

31 service.




Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of
this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material
weaknesses or, significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify
any deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weakngsses. However, material
weaknesses may exist and not have been identified.

Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Housing Authority of the City of
Alameda, California’s financial statements are free of material misstatement, we performed tests of its
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, coniracts, and grant agreements,
noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the determination of financial
statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an
objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests
disclosed no instances of roncompliance or other matlers that are required to be reported under
Government Auditing Standards.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal conirol and
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the
entity’s internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in
accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the entity’s internal control and
compliance. Accordingly, this communieation is not suitable for any other purpose.

Cu;w.«.ﬂu—w"‘;"'ué

- Walnui Creek, California . . _. . I _ T

December 16, 2015
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"CROPPER ROWE, LLP
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REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR EACH MAJOR PROGRAM; REPORT ON
INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE; AND REPORT ON THE SCHEDULE OF
EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
REQUIRED BY OMB CIRCULAR A-133

Independent Auditors’ Report

To the Board of Commissioners
Housing Authority of the City of Alameda
Alameda, California

Report on Compliance for Each Major Program

We have audited the Housing Authority of the City of Alameda, California’s compliance with the
types of compliance requirements described in the OMB Circular A-133 Compliance Supplement that
could have a direct and material effect on each of the Housing Authority of the City of Alameda,
California’s major federal programs for the year ended June 30, 2015. The Housing Authority of the
City of Alameda, California’s major programs are identified in the summary of auditor’s resulfs
section of the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs.

Management’s Responsibility

Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements of faws, regulations, contracts, and
grants applicable to major federal programs.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for each of the Housing Authority of the
City of Alameda, California’s major federal programs based on our audit of the types of compliance
requirements referred to above. We conducted our audit of compliance with auditing standards
generally accepted in the United States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits
contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States;
and OMB Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments and Non-Profit Organizations. Those
standards and OMB Circular A-133 require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether noncompliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above
that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal program occurred. An audit includes
examining, on a test basis, evidence about the Housing Authority of the City of Alameda, California's
compliance with those requirements and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary
in the circumstances.




We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for each major
federal program. However, out audit does not provide a legal determination of the Housing Authority
of the City of Alameda, California's compliance.

Opinion on Each Major Federal Program

In our opittion, the Housing Authority of the City of Alameda, California complied, in all material
respects, with the types of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and
material effect on each of its major federal programs for the year ended June 30, 2015.

Report on Internal Controf Over Compliance

Management of the Housing Authority of the City of Alameda, California is responsible for
establishing and maintaining effective internal control over compliance with the types of compliance
referred to above. In planning and performing our andif of compliance, we considered the Housing
Authority of the City of Alameda's infernal control over compliance with the types of requirements
that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal program to determine the auditing
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
compliance for each major federal program and to test and report on internal control over compliance
in accordance with OMB circular A-133, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectivencss of internal control over compliance. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Housing Authority of the City of Alameda, California’s internal control over
compliance.

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over
compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their
assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance
requirement of a federal program on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal control over
compliance is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such
that there is a reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of compliance
requirement of a federal program will not be prevented; or detéeted and corrected, on a timely basis. A

_. significant deficiency in internal control over complignce is a deficiency, or_a combination of .

deficiencies, in internal control over compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal
program that is less severe than a material weakness in internal control over compliance, yet important
enough to merit atlention by those charged with governance,

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first
paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over
compliance that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. We did not identify any
deficiencies in internal contro! over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses, However,
material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our

testing of internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of
OMB Circular A-133. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose.
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Report on Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards Required by OMB Circular A-133

We have audited the financial statements of the business-type activities, the one major fund, and the
aggregate remaining fund information of the Housing Authority of the City of Alameda, California as
of and for the year ended June 30, 2015, and the related notes to the financial statements, which
collectively comprise the Housing Authority of the City of Alameda’s basic financial statements. We
issued our report thereon dated December 16, 2015, which contained unmodified opinions on those
financial statements. Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial
statement that collectively comprise the basic financial statements. The accompanying schedule of
expenditures of federal awards is presented for purposes of additional analysis as required by OMB
Circular A-133 and is not a required part of the basic financial statements. Such information is the
tesponsibility of management and was derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting
and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements. The information has been subjected to
the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements and certain additional
procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying
accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic financial
statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards
generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the schedule of expenditures of
federal awards is fairly stated in all material respecls in relation te the basic finaneial statements as a
whole.

Chtoppgpons B, & 68

Walnut Creek, California
December 16, 2015
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HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF ALAMEDA
STATUS OF PRIOR AUDIT FINDINGS
JUNE 30, 2015

The previous audit report for the year ended June 30, 2014 contained no audit findings.
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HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF ALAMEDA
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

JUNE 30, 2015

Section I - Summary of Auditors' Results

Financial Statements

Type of auditors' report issued:

Internal control over financial reporting;
Material weaknesses identified?
Significant deficiencies identified?

Noncompliance material to financial statements?

Federal Awards

Internal control over major programs:
Material weaknesses identified?
Significant deficiencies identified?

Type of auditors' report issued on compliance for major programs:
ep p Jor progr

Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be reported in
accordance with 2 CFR 200.516(a)?

Identification of major programs:
Section 8 Housing Choice Vouchers

Dollar threshold to distinguish between Type A and Type B programs

$750,763

unmodified

no
none reported

no

1no
none reported

unmodified

no

14.871

Auditee qualified as low risk auditee?

57
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